1983

**Austin Hobbs v. The Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad  
Company, And State of Utah, Department of Transportation : Brief  
of Appellant**

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a personal injury action brought by the plaintiff to recover for injuries he received when the truck he was driving was struck by a train.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

This matter was tried before the Honorable J. Dennis Frederick, of the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County, sitting without a jury, on November 30 through December 3, 1982. At the conclusion of the evidence, the court found that neither defendant was negligent, and that the sole proximate cause of the accident was the negligence of the plaintiff, and entered judgment, no cause of action, for the defendants. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were prepared by counsel for the Railroad. Copies of the Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law are attached hereto as Appendix "A". The plaintiff moved to amend the Findings of Fact, and also moved for a new trial.

These motions were denied by the court in an order entered on January 13, 1983.

STATEMENT OF DECISION

The plaintiff seeks to have the judgment of the trial court reversed, and have this matter remanded for a new trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiff-appellant in this action, Austin Hobbs (hereinafter Mr. Hobbs), was a truck driver for Western Coal Carriers at the time of the accident which gave rise to this lawsuit. Mr. Hobbs had been a truck driver for Western Coal Carriers for approximately six years before the time of the accident. (Tr. 471.) During that period he had received numerous safe driving awards from Western Coal Carriers. (Tr. 475.)

On April 6, 1979, representatives of the Department of Transportation for the State of Utah (hereinafter Department of Transportation), the Denver & Rio Grande Railroad (hereinafter Railroad), and the City of Price met together to discuss and make plans for the renovation of a railroad crossing located at Carbon Avenue in the city of Price, Utah. (Tr. 190.) The Department of Transportation had prepared the roadway plan for the Carbon Avenue crossing. (Tr. 169-70.) A copy of a portion of Exhibit P25 is a map of Price City, and is attached hereto as Appendix "B".

One of the purposes of the above-described meeting was to determine what should be done with the Carbon Avenue traffic (approximately 11,000 vehicles per day (R. 251)) during the construction of the Carbon Avenue crossing. Several alternatives

were discussed in the meeting. The railroad proposed that the traffic be detoured to First West because First West was already a grade crossing, that is, it already had in place flashing lights that would warn of the approach of a train. (Tr. 284, 285.) The Department of Transportation proposed that the traffic be detoured to First East in Price. (Tr. 284.) The First East crossing did not have the crossing safety or warning devices that were present at either First West or Carbon Avenue. (Tr. 203.) The traffic load at the First East crossing prior to the detour was approximately 230 vehicles per day. (Tr. 251.) The other alternative was to move the traffic through the Carbon Avenue crossing while the construction was in process, without utilizing a detour. (Tr. 192.)

The Department of Transportation had the ultimate and final decision with respect to the detour, and decided that the First East crossing would be used. (Tr. 218-19.) There was some discussion with respect to whether additional safety or warning devices would be placed at the First East crossing while the detour and construction at Carbon Avenue were in process. The Department of Transportation again made the final decision that no additional safety or warning devices would be placed at the crossing. (Tr. 219.) The railroad acquiesced in the decision to detour the traffic to First East. (Tr. 286.) The Railroad felt, however, that a flagman should be present at the First East crossing during the pendency of the detour and, accordingly, one was stationed there. The flagman was not, however, posted at the crossing during the night but only during the day. (Tr. 341.)



Mr. Alire of the Railroad had indicated that it would not be necessary to have a flagman at the crossing. (Tr. 449.) Consequently, there was no flagman at the crossing where Mr. Hobbs was in the presence of an approaching train in the night of the accident. (Tr. 58.) The railroad put a "slow order" into effect during the pendency of the construction, which in effect required the trains going through Price to reduce their speeds from the normal 40 m.p.h. down to 30 m.p.h. (Tr. 369.)

A diagram of the First East Crossing is set forth in Appendix "C". The distance from the beginning of the crossing to the point of impact, traveling in the direction that Mr. Hobbs was traveling, is approximately 106 feet. At the speed of 3 m.p.h. (Tr. 488), it would have taken Mr. Hobbs approximately 24 seconds to traverse that distance.

The construction and detour on the Carbon Avenue crossing commenced on April 23, 1981. (Tr. 300, 318-19.) On that same day, Mr. Hobbs was working an afternoon shift driving a coal truck for Western Coal Carriers. His work period on the day of the accident commenced at approximately 1:00 p.m. (Tr. 479.) His work on that day consisted on hauling coal from various mine locations to the site locations of the various coal users who utilized the services of Western Coal Carriers. Much of this work was confined to eastern and southern Utah. (Tr. 112-14.) The distance driven by Mr. Hobbs on the day of the accident was approximately 200 miles. (Tr. 116.)

Mr. Hobbs approached the First East railroad crossing where the accident took place at approximately 10:00 p.m. (Tr. 107.)

copy of Exhibit P7, which is a diagram of the First East crossing, is attached hereto as Appendix "C". As Mr. Hobbs reached and proceeded to cross the tracks he had to go very slow because the tracks were rough and uneven. (Tr. 487-88.) The speed at which Mr. Hobbs was able to cross the railroad tracks was only about 3 m.p.h. (Tr. 488.) Mr. Hamilton of the Department of Transportation testified that railroad crossings are dangerous if they cannot be crossed at a safe speed. (Tr. 166.) He also testified that a loaded truck should be able to cross a crossing at approximately 30 m.p.h. in order to be safe and prudent. (Tr. 182.)

As Mr. Hobbs proceeded across the tracks, any vision that he might have had down the tracks was obscured by various objects. The objects consisted of a box car parked about 150-300 feet east on the side rails at the crossing (Tr. 53, 343), a house, a shed, a large tree in foliage, and a car or van. (Tr. 60.) Mr. Hobbs could not clearly see up the tracks, because of the obstructions, until after he was beyond the third set of tracks on the railroad crossing. (Tr. 61.) Mr. Hobbs testified that the front steering axle was just going across the track when he saw the light on the train and heard the whistle. (Tr. 488.)

Mr. Harvey, who was a supervisor, or road forman of equipment for the railroad, was in the lead engine of the train on the night of the accident for the purpose of observing the crew members. (Tr. 559-60.) Mr. Harvey testified that he first saw Mr. Hobbs truck after it had moved past the warning signs, at which it was supposed to stop, but didn't. (Tr. 582-84.) He

further testified that he did not believe Mr. Hobbs' behavior, proceeding onto the tracks notwithstanding a train was approaching, was unusual, because an approaching truck driver could not see trains on the main line track until after he was already well across the crossing. (Tr. 585.) Mr. Harvey assumed that Mr. Hobbs would stop his truck on the crossing, but short of the main line track, and wait for the train to pass, notwithstanding he would then be directly in the path of any trains which may be approaching on any of the other tracks. (Tr. 586-87.) Mr. Harvey did not notify the engineer that Mr. Hobbs' truck was on the track until the train was only 150 feet from the point of impact. (Tr. 568.)

Mr. Leonard, the front end brakeman on the train involved in the accident, testified that the train was only approximately 50 feet away from the truck when he first saw it and started taking action to stop the train. (Tr. 432.) Mr. Ganser, the engineer, had previously seen the truck when the train was about 150 feet from the crossing, but took no action other than blowing the whistle. (Tr. 405-06, 426.) As described above, Mr. Harvey, who was conducting an observation test of the train crew, saw the truck even before Mr. Ganser and observed that he hadn't stopped at the crossbucks, but did not attempt to warn the train crew until the train was about 150 feet from the crossing. (Tr. 565-68, 582-88.) It was necessary for Mr. Leonard, the front brakeman, and Mr. Harvey, an observer in the cab of the train engine, to yell to Mr. Ganser, the engineer on the train, in order to warn him that the truck was on the tracks. (Tr. 432.) Mr.

Kanser testified that the console in the cab of the engine constituted somewhat of an obstruction of vision to the left for the driver. (Tr. 399.)

When Mr. Hobbs saw the train he accelerated in an attempt to get the cab of the truck off of the tracks before the train struck him. (Tr. 489.) The train hit the truck just behind the cab. (Tr. 490.) After the collision, the train proceeded a full block west to the Carbon Avenue crossing before it came to a stop. The cab of the truck was impaled on the front of the engine from the time of the collision until it came to rest a block west of the accident. (Tr. 47-48.) Because of the severely damaged condition of the cab of Mr. Hobbs' truck, it took nearly an hour for the emergency personnel who arrived on the scene to extricate Mr. Hobbs from the truck. (Tr. 48.)

Officer Douros of the Carbon County Sheriff's office testified that, after he conducted a full investigation of the accident, no citation was issued to Mr. Hobbs with respect to the accident. (Tr. 74.)

Mr. Hobbs was taken to a hospital as soon as he was removed from the truck and he was treated for a fractured pelvis, fractured ribs, and a punctured lung. (Tr. 90.) On September 29, 1980, Mr. Hobbs underwent back surgery as a consequence of the accident. (Tr. 84, 80.) Dr. Robert H. Lamb testified that Mr. Hobbs had sustained a 20% permanent partial injury as a result of the accident. (Tr. 84.) Mr. Hobbs still suffers from a great deal of pain and has been substantially limited in his activities because of the accident. (Tr. 545-46.)

POINT 1

DEFENDANT DENVER & RIO GRANDE WESTERN RAILROAD COMPANY HAS A DUTY OF CARE TO MAINTAIN A SAFE RAILROAD CROSSING, AND OWES REDDITS DUE TO A MATTER OF LAW.

Utah Code Ann. § 56-1-10 (1943) states that "every railroad company shall be liable for damages caused by its neglect to make and maintain good and sufficient crossings at points where any line of travel crosses its road." The question of what constitutes a "good and sufficient" crossing was interpreted in Denkers v. Southern Pacific Co., 52 Utah 18, 171 P. 999 (1918):

The court, in a case of this kind, might properly charge the jury in general terms that a good and sufficient crossing is a crossing that is sufficient and ordinarily safe for the traveling public to pass to and fro over it, keeping in mind its location, whether in a sparsely settled or populous locality, and the character and volume of the traffic that ordinarily may be expected to pass over it.

171 P. at 1002.

In Bridges v. Union Pacific Railroad Co., 26 Utah 2d 281, 488 P.2d 738 (1971), the Utah Supreme Court denied recovery to the plaintiffs in a wrongful death action when their nineteen year old son was hit by a train, but, in the decision, spelled out the tests which must be applied to determine the safety of railroad crossings:

To authorize a jury to find negligence on the part of the railroad in not taking additional precautions, there must be evidence to indicate that the crossing was more than ordinarily hazardous, i.e., there must be something in the configuration of the land, or in the construction of the railroad, or in the structures in the vicinity, or in the nature or amount of the travel on the highway,

or in other conditions, which renders the warning employed at the crossings inadequate to warn the public of danger.

at 738. All the physical surroundings must be evaluated to determine whether a particular crossing is abnormally dangerous. These factors include those mentioned in both the Bridges and Denkers cases.

The case of Newman v. Missouri Pacific Railroad Co., 547 F.2d 439 (5th Cir. 1977), evaluated the physical conditions of a railroad crossing where a train-car collision occurred at night. The driver of the car approached the crossing at a speed of 30-40 m.p.h. and did not stop at a stop sign properly posted at the crossing. The train, which was dark in color, was approaching the crossing and the train crew was ringing the train's bell and blowing its horn. The locomotive's lights were shining as well. In addition, a temporary flashing red light had been installed over the traffic, although it was not a typical railroad semaphore. In finding that the railroad crossing was unsafe and that the defendant railroad company had a duty to warn, the court said:

We begin with the principle that failure to stop at a railroad as required by law "shall not of itself defeat recovery . . . ."

. . . . Finding that the horn was sounding and the bell was ringing but that the plaintiff did not hear them, and assuming that the red flashing light was working, the district court ruled that these warnings were not sufficient under the circumstances. We hold that under Mississippi precedent this conclusion was not in error.

545 F.2d at 443 (emphasis added).

In the instant case, the undisputed facts imposed a duty on the railroad as a matter of law to make the intersection safe. In ruling on this case, the trial court said: "The court is of the view and finds that the plaintiff's conduct in failing to stop or recognize the oncoming train or to hear the warning devices that were in operation was the sole proximate cause of the accident." In so finding, the court failed to evaluate the crossing in light of its dangerous condition. The following evidence was undisputed, and establishes liability as a matter of law. There were several obstructions to the plaintiff's view including a box car, trees and a junk yard. In addition, First East was a relatively unused crossing which had suddenly been converted into a highway, increasing traffic over it by 48 times. Visibility was poor because of the darkness, and there were no flashing semaphores which Mr. Hobbs was accustomed to seeing. A flagman had been stationed at the crossing, which Mr. Hobbs undoubtedly had seen early in the day, but the flagman had left the crossing, and no one was left to warn of an approaching train. The crossing to the west which previously handled most of their traffic with flashing warning lights had been deemed to be so hazardous and inadequate that the State and Railroad had elected to improve the positioning of the warning lights to overhead positions and to install a barrier arm.

Plaintiff submits that although the court found that the crossing was not extra hazardous, it failed to apply the tests established in Bridges, supra, and Denkers, supra, to make its determination. An application of those tests are as follows:

1. The configuration in the land blocked plaintiff Hobbs' line of vision. This configuration included foliage from trees and a junk yard in front of the line of sight of a driver.

2. The configuration of the railroad tracks was such that the plaintiff had to cross, at a maximum speed of 5 miles per hour, a full five sets of railroad tracks prior to safely negotiating the crossing.

3. Structures in the vicinity included homes, a metal shed, a junk yard, a van, and a box car along the side track which obstructed the plaintiff's view.

4. Testimony on the nature and amount of traffic on the highway indicated that traffic flows had increased measurably from approximately 230 vehicles per day to over 11,000 vehicles per day.

5. The State and Railroad had already determined that the same amount of traffic over an improved crossing required flashing warning lights and automated barrier arms which lower when trains approach.

6. Other conditions which contributed to the accident included the fact that the accident occurred at night and that a flagman had been posted at the crossing during the day which would give rise to an assumption that someone was protecting those crossing the railroad crossing. In addition, several accidents had previously occurred at the intersection which proved its dangerous condition, and also placed the Railroad and the State of Utah on notice of the danger. (R. 162.)



Despite the uncontested facts presented at trial which proved an extra hazardous condition at the railroad crossing under any one of the five tests promulgated by Bridges, the court in this case still found that the crossing was not extra hazardous. This finding was clearly contrary to the evidence presented and is reversible error.

#### POINT II

#### THE RAILROAD WAS NEGLIGENT IN THE OPERATION OF ITS TRAIN.

It is undisputed that the engineer did not see and could not see the truck until he was 50 to 150 feet from impact. This is because the configuration of the cab was such that he could not see forward and to the left (Tr. 399), the direction from which Hobbs was coming. Ganser was totally dependent upon warnings given him from Leonard, the front end brakeman, or Harvey, who was sitting in the same seat. Neither said anything to him up to 150 feet before impact.

The Court will take judicial notice, and it was established by proof, that at 40 m.p.h. the train is traveling approximately 60 feet per second. It is also known that there is at least 1 second involved for perception and reaction time so that the engineer had approximately a second's notice of the impending collision in spite of the fact that the truck in its motion was clearly visible by the defendant's calculation and argument for 24 seconds.

It is clear that the Railroad had a duty to maintain a lookout for approaching automobiles. Alires v. Southern Pacific

Co., 93 Ariz. 97, 378 P.2d 913, 920-21 (1963). The train fireman in that case, who was apparently seated on the side of the engine in which the plaintiff's vehicle collided, was looking the other way and did not see the plaintiff's vehicle approaching. The court held that this state of facts would justify a jury instruction on wanton negligence.

It was clearly negligence for the Railroad in the instant case to:

a) Operate a train at any speed which did not afford the engineer a clear view to the left and right.

b) To operate a train at 40 m.p.h. or 30 m.p.h. at this location and under these circumstances.

The trial court's findings that the Railroad was 100% negligence free was contrary to the clear weight of the evidence and should be reversed.

### POINT III

#### THE STATE OF UTAH HAD A DUTY TO MAINTAIN A SAFE RAILROAD CROSSING.

The trial court in its decision stated that the State of Utah was not negligent and failed to reach the question of whether the State was immune from suit under the governmental immunity doctrine. Because the issue of governmental immunity was never reached, only a general discussion of negligence principles as they apply to the State is necessary.

The plaintiff contends that the State was largely responsible for the repair work being conducted at the intersection where the accident occurred, and that it is subject to the same

standard of care as is the Railroad. The Utah Department of Transportation officials made the final decision as to where to route traffic, and also made decisions on the warning devices to be employed. In a long line of Utah cases, the Supreme Court of Utah has adopted the philosophy that a political entity may be held liable for actions or inactions in traffic control which endanger the public. See Bigelow v. Ingersol, 618 P.2d 50 (Utah 1980); Carroll v. State, 27 Utah 2d 384, 496 P.2d 888 (1972); Bramel v. State Road Commission, 24 Utah 2d 50, 465 P.2d 534 (1970). The defendant State of Utah had the same responsibility as the Railroad to evaluate the condition of the crossing, according to the Bridges tests, and to adequately protect the crossing where increased traffic would be occurring because of its detour.

#### POINT IV

#### THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS FINDINGS AND ALLOCATION OF NEGLIGENCE.

Appeal courts are reluctant to reverse trial decisions on factual grounds, and are only willing to do so when the weight of the evidence is clearly contrary to the judgment. Hardy v. Hendrickson, 27 Utah 2d 251, 495 P.2d 28 (1972). The allocation of negligence is also a factual issue. Buttrey Food Stores Division v. Coulson, 620 P.2d 549 (Wyo. 1980).

The trial court or the appeals court may, however, in comparative negligence cases, review the percentage allocations of negligence by the finder of fact, and impose its own allocation of fault to conform to the evidence at trial. Mazo v. Malone, 407 A.2d 310 (Me. 1979). In the case of Kinsey v. Kelly, 312

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