1983

**Austin Hobbs v. The Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad Company, And State of Utah, Department of Transportation : Brief of Defendant-Respondent State of Utah, Department Of Transportation**

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE LOWER COURT CORRECTLY FOUND  
SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE THAT D.O.T.  
WAS NOT NEGLIGENT IN THE SELECTION  
OF THE 1ST EAST CROSSING.

It is difficult to determine from Appellant's Brief the exact basis of his appellate claims against defendant D.O.T. It is assumed that since the only role D.O.T. had in this accident was the selection of the 1st East crossing as a detour for Carbon Avenue, that this selection is the sole basis of Appellant's claim now before this Court. (See Appellant's Brief, p. 13-14).

The statement of Plaintiff is incorrect that D.O.T. was involved with "repair work being conducted at the intersection where the accident occurred." (Appellant's Brief, p. 13). At the time of the accident the only repair work being performed by D.O.T. was at Carbon Avenue--not 1st East. It is clear that D.O.T. did not operate the railroad engine which was involved in the accident nor was it responsible for any actions or omissions of the Railroad.

The claims of Appellant against D.O.T. therefore, can be divided into two categories: first, that D.O.T. was negligent in selecting the 1st East crossing as opposed to other alternatives; second, once the crossing was selected D.O.T. was negligent in not requiring additional warning devices at the crossing. These two contentions will now be discussed.

A. There Was No Substantial Evidence That D.O.T. Was Negligent in the Selection of the 1st East Crossing as a Detour Route.

A review of the evidence shows that Plaintiff spent a great deal of time and effort in the lower court comparing the advantages and disadvantages of the 1st East vs. 1st West railroad crossings. In addition, Plaintiff continuously referred to the traffic patterns and signals utilized on Carbon Avenue in comparing it to both alternatives. If Plaintiff could have shown that the selection of the 1st East crossing breached a duty of D.O.T. to the motoring public then such an effort could be justified. However, the evidence is virtually undisputed that the 1st East crossing which was selected by D.O.T. was a sound and prudent decision in the discretionarily judgment of D.O.T.

Because Plaintiff did not become involved in an accident on his route to the railroad crossing, the selection of the various roads which were utilized in reaching the crossing is immaterial to this lawsuit. For example, the claims of Plaintiff that additional turns or unsafe turns were required have no relevance in this litigation. The only possible relevance as to the detour route concerns the crossing itself. In other words, was the lower court justified in concluding that D.O.T. exercised reasonable care "in the choice of the detour route to 1st East." (Conclusion of Law No. 4).

The evidence clearly shows that D.O.T. was justified in selecting the 1st East detour route while the Carbon Avenue

crossing remained closed. During the meeting in which D.O.T. representatives met with the Railroad and City representatives, the various options for rerouting were thoroughly discussed. While it is true as Plaintiff argues in his brief that the 1st West crossing had certain advantages over the 1st East crossing, it is equally true that there were advantages of the 1st East crossing over the 1st West crossing. As noted by the lower court in the Findings of Fact, these included the amount of traffic, the housing and population of children, the average speed of traffic, the number of turns that had to be made, the condition of the crossings, and the convenience of the detour to the general public. (Tr. 225-233, 533).

There was no showing by Plaintiff that it was negligent for D.O.T. to expect cars or trucks to be able to safely pass across the 1st East intersection. This was not an instance where a vehicle was directed on a detour which was negligently designed and which caused the accident to occur. C.f. Bramel v. Utah State Road Comm., 465 P.2d 534 (Utah 1970). All of the roads used in the detour were already existing as was the railroad crossing itself. Here, the only purpose of the detour was to route traffic from one existing railroad crossing to another existing railroad crossing. There is no showing whatsoever that the decision was either negligent or that such decision proximately caused Plaintiff's injuries.

Plaintiff argues that because the traffic flow at the 1st East crossing increased from approximately 230 vehicles per day to over 11,000 vehicles per day then D.O.T. was somehow negli-

gent in choosing this particular crossing. Such an argument is without merit. Plaintiff produced no evidence that the 1st East crossing was incapable of handling this additional load of vehicles for a short three to five day period. Obviously, thousands of cars and vehicles had utilized the 1st East crossing for many years prior to the temporary closure of the Carbon Avenue crossing. Thus, while the increased number of cars may have caused congestion or some other traffic flow effect upon the crossing, Plaintiff produced no evidence that the crossing was made dangerous because of these additional cars. If anything, the fact that this number of cars was able to utilize the crossing during the detour period again showed that the decision to utilize the crossing was not negligent.

More importantly, however, is the fact that the number of cars which utilized the crossing is completely irrelevant to this lawsuit. It is undisputed that at the time of the accident there was no other traffic traveling in the railroad crossing. Plaintiff himself admitted to this fact. (Tr. 529-30). Whether there were 11,000, 100,000 or ten cars passing in the intersection that day is completely irrelevant to the facts of this accident in which only the plaintiff and the train were involved.

The focus of Plaintiff upon the Carbon Avenue crossing is completely misplaced. The only factual relevance of the Carbon Avenue crossing is that Plaintiff would not have crossed at 1st East had the Carbon Avenue crossing not been closed. However, this fact is no more relevant than to say that had

the plaintiff eaten his lunch five minutes slower he would not have been at the crossing when the train passed. Thus, as to the choice of the 1st East crossing itself there is no evidence of negligence or proximate causation to Plaintiff's injuries.

A case involving similar claims is High v. The State Highway Dept., 307 A.2d 799 (Del. 1973). In that case the plaintiff's decedent was traveling on a detour which had been routed by the state highway department because of construction on the main highway. A jury verdict was entered in favor of the plaintiff and against the highway department for improperly detouring the traffic.

The Supreme Court of Delaware reviewed the evidence and concluded that judgment, as a matter of law, should be entered in favor of the highway department. The court noted that the traffic routing plan was prepared in accordance with the usual and normal provisions used by the highway department. The plaintiff, while acknowledging that normal procedures were undertaken, urged that additional steps should have been implemented including the placement of guardrails, the erection of more signs, and the construction of a swing-around area.

The court found that the highway department had correctly exercised its discretion in selecting the traffic routing plan that was utilized in this case. The Supreme Court of Delaware stated:

We think it is clear that if there are two acceptable courses of action for the achievement of the same purpose, it is not negligence on the



part of a defendant to pursue one rather than the other. This Court recognized this principle in DeFilippo v. Preston, 173 A.2d 333 (Del., 1961). This was a medical malpractice case, and we held that the decision of the doctor to follow one of two accepted surgical procedures should not be made the basis of a charge of negligence when the operation was unsuccessful. We stated:

We think, therefore, that the plaintiff failed to make a submissible issue of negligence for the jury and that, consequently, on this phase of the case the direction of a verdict for the defendant was proper.

To the same effect is Boston CC and New York Canal Co. v. Seaboard Transportation Co., 270 F. 525 (1st Cir. 1921). We think, therefore, that it was error to refuse the highway department's motion for directed verdict. We point out that this conclusion is not based upon any concept of the doctrine of sovereign immunity, which is specifically waived by 18 Del. C. §6509. This conclusion is based solely upon our opinion that no issue of negligence was presented to be resolved by the jury as to the highway department. The judgment against the state highway department will therefore be reversed. Id. at 850. (Emphasis added).

In the instant case the lower court did not rule as a matter of law that D.O.T. had no liability. Rather, the court found as a trier of fact that the detour plan was reasonable and that D.O.T. exercised reasonable care in the choice of the detour route. There is no substantial evidence to the contrary and therefore the decision of the lower court as to this phase of its opinion must be sustained.

B. There was no Substantial Evidence That D.O.T. was Negligent in the Utilization of Warning Devices at the Crossing.

A closely related claim to the one previously discussed is whether, after choosing the 1st East crossing as the detour route, D.O.T. was obligated to make additional warning devices

available during the detour period. In other words, even if it is assumed that D.O.T. was not negligent in selecting the 1st East crossing as an alternate route was it negligent in not requiring additional warning devices during the time the detour was in effect?

Appellant asserts that because the Carbon Avenue crossing utilized flashing lights and because improvements in the crossing with additional lights were being made that this required some type of signals to be installed on 1st East during the detour. (Appellant's Brief, p. 3, 11, 13-14). In addition, Plaintiff claims that to be a safe railroad crossing the 1st East intersection should have allowed traffic to pass at 30 mph. (Appellant's Brief, p. 20).

The comparison of the Carbon Avenue crossing to the 1st East crossing is inappropriate. The Carbon Avenue crossing was designed to carry a large load of traffic. As noted by Appellant himself, the crossing carried an average of 11,000 cars a day. The purpose of the intersection and its warning systems was to allow a speedy flow of traffic across the railroad tracks except when trains were present. Thus, the 30 mph speed which was desirable for providing stability for trans-versing traffic (Tr. 167) is only applicable to an "improved" railroad crossing. (Tr. 216). The purpose of the alternating electronic signals is to stop traffic only when trains are coming and to therefore allow the smooth flow of traffic when trains are not present.

On the other hand, the 1st East railroad crossing is similar

to thousands within the country and within the State of Utah. This is a low density crossing which is not designed for large volume of traffic and it is not a high speed route for rail. Rather, these type of crossings rely on the ability of the motorist to prudently observe the sound of a train and use the train to give appropriate signals when it approaches. The argument advanced by Plaintiff would, in effect, require the imposition of automated signals at every intersection within the State of Utah regardless of the number of vehicles which may use it in any given day. Such a suggestion is both illogical and completely unattainable unless millions of dollars in additional signal equipment is appropriated for such use.

It is clear that Utah law permits these type of intersections on the assumption that a motorist, once he is warned that a railroad crossing exists, will exercise the type of care necessary to avoid an accident in conjunction with the same care utilized by railroad personnel. §41-6-95, U.C.A.

D.O.T. was not negligent in selecting the 1st East railway crossing for the detour since its terrain and warning signs were more than adequate for observation of trains. The crossing had full visibility of all four quadrants of the crossing. (Tr. 201). There was very little elevation difference in the tracks thereby allowing full visibility in all directions. (Tr. 233). (See photograph contained in Appendix herein).

In addition, there were adequate warning signs that the railroad tracks were present. Prior to the tracks on the

pavement there were 12-inch wide cross-type or crosses with the symbol "RR". (Tr. 231). In addition there were "cross-ticks" which signified the existence of the railroad tracks and a vertical circular sign with the RR symbol. (Tr. 231). D.O.T. felt that because of these warnings and because of the terrain of the crossing that additional warning devices would not be necessary. (Tr. 201).

There can be no question from the record that the plaintiff was aware of the existence of the railroad tracks before he entered the crossing. The evidence is undisputed that he was completely familiar with the railroad tracks at the time of the accident. Plaintiff had traveled across these same tracks at the Carbon Avenue crossing for over six years and admitted that he knew trains generally used the northernmost track. (Tr. 511). He also admitted that he knew he was traveling over railroad tracks at the time of the accident and, in fact, had traveled over four sets of tracks before he was hit by the train on the fifth set. (Tr. 523).

As to Plaintiff's claim that he should have been warned about the approach of the train, it is not the obligation of the D.O.T. in this type of intersection to give such a warning. Rather, it is the sole responsibility of the motorist and the train personnel to insure that they are both watching for each other's presence. Had this been a case in which a flashing signal was present but failed to activate when a train approached then Plaintiff would justifiably have a claim against D.O.T. if it had the duty to maintain the device. Had Plaintiff shown that

the accident was caused by the increased traffic flow on 1st East he may also have had a valid claim. Here, there was neither a mechanical device nor the existence of any other traffic. Thus, no breach to warn is present.

Plaintiff has shown a duty which requires D.O.T. to place a mechanical device or a flagman at every railroad crossing in the state. While Utah law requires a motorist to stop for an electrical or mechanical signal device or for a human flagman, it also requires a motorist to stop when a railroad train emits an audible signal or when an approaching train is visible and is in a hazardous proximity to the crossing. §41-6-95, U.C.A.

The facts giving rise to this accident do not really concern defendant D.O.T. in that it merely routed the traffic to a perfectly usable railroad crossing in which adequate notice of the crossing was given. Whether Plaintiff was negligent in failing to observe the train or whether the train personnel were negligent in failing to adequately warn the plaintiff or failing to observe him does not concern the liability of the D.O.T.

Unlike the plaintiff in High, supra, Appellant produced no expert testimony that either the crossing was extra hazardous or required additional warning devices. As noted earlier, even if such testimony had been presented, the trial court is still able to rule as a matter of law in the favor of the detour planning agency. Here, there was no evidence of any breach by D.O.T. in relying on the warnings in existence and upon the

high visibility of the crossing itself.

Thus, the lower court correctly concluded that the D.O.T. exercised reasonable care in the choice of crossing protections required and installed at the first East crossing. (Conclusion of Law No. 4). It also concluded that the crossing was not extra hazardous because of volume of traffic, the nature of the crossing, the presence of obstructions, or because of other circumstances prevailing on the night of the accident. The court also correctly found that neither the D.O.T. nor the Railroad had a duty to place flagmen or additional warnings or protection at the 1st East crossing under the circumstances of Plaintiff's accident. (Conclusion of Law No. 5).

These conclusions are based upon substantial evidence. Even if it is assumed arguendo that D.O.T. had some legal responsibility for the events occurring within the railroad crossing itself the evidence is clear that Plaintiff's conduct was the cause of the accident. The undisputed facts as to the warnings given by the Railroad as verified by two disinterested witnesses and the series of photographs showing the visibility of the railroad tracks during the 10 to 15 seconds which Plaintiff had available to observe, clearly supports the lower court's findings that Plaintiff's actions were the sole proximate cause of the accident. (See photographs depicting time sequence of Plaintiff's approach to the mainline track contained in the Appendix herein).

Substantial evidence exists to support the lower court's findings and conclusions. Regardless of what theory is utilized

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